APPROVED/BOARD OF FINANCE MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 28, 2007

A regular meeting of the Board of Finance was held on Wednesday, March 28,2007 in the
conference room in Town Hall at 7:30 p.m..

Members Present: Marty Heiser, Chairman; Kevin Walsh, Vice Chairman; David Ulmer, Glenn
Cordelli, and Peter Gomez

Town Officials: Jay Wahlberg, Controller

Guests: Charles Knoche, Chairman Police Commission; George Kain, Police
Commissioner; Police Chief Richard Ligi; Major John Roche; Fire Chief
Heather L. Burford; Fire Marshal, David A. Lathrop; Peter Hill,

Superintendent of Highway; Bill Hoff, Highway Office Manager; Frank A.
Sergiovanni, Director of Golf; Anton Steger, Golf Course Superintendent; Ed
Tyrell, Golf Commissioner

In Attendance: First Selectman: Rudy Marconi; Keith Miller, Chairman, Board of Education.

AGENDA

1. Budget Discussions with Police, Fire, Golf and Highway Departments
2. Adjournment

Mr. Heiser called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

In response to an inquiry from Mr. Heiser, Mr. Hill drew a comparison between the years 1973/79 and
2007. During the 1973/79 time frame, the Highway Department had twenty-one (21) personnel and
160 miles of road. In 2007, the Highway Department has eighteen (18) personnel and 190 miles of
roads. Mr. Hill said if you put aside utility and engineering costs, the Highway Department budget is
now 8.5% lower than it was last year. Mr. Hill expressed his hope that the Board of Finance would, at
a minimum, not make any further cuts in the Highway Dept.’s budget and optimally, would
recommend restoration of cuts made by the Board of Selectmen. Mr. Heiser explained that the Board
of Selectment is management, the Board of Finance is oversight. Mr. Hill has a list of forty-five (45)
roads that need to be resurfaced, but budget constraints have reduced that list to twenty-eight (28)
roads. When the Board of Selectmen cut $250k from the Highway Budget, Mr. Hill reduced the list
further to eighteen (18) roads. Various types of road maintenance and resurfacing were discussed. Mr.
Hoff discussed the department’s part-time clerk position.

Mr. Cordelli asked about the wood shearer in the 2007/08 capital budget @ $18,500.00 saying that

work was currently contracted out and did the Highway Department expect an offset in its expenses if
the work were done in house.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/28/2007 Page 1 of 6



Mr. Hill said it depends on how much work the tree warden bring in. He said Mr. Pinchback
anticipates a major loss of ash trees along the Town’s roads in the next few years and that the
contracting costs will continue to increase. Mr. Hoff said they did not reduce the operating budget by
the amount that they spend on the contracting.

Mr. Gomez asked Mr. Hill if he could collaborate with neighboring towns in the purchase of overlay
and, thereby, realize some cost savings. Mr. Hill said he does talk with neighboring highway
departments to keep informed about their costs and said he did not think that Ridgefield could achieve
any cost reductions from the State bid that the Town currently piggy backs. Mr. Hill said he would be
happy to look into it further: “I don’t have a problem with researching, but [ have an idea what the end
result will be.” Mr. Hill also said that there was a limited number of contractors willing to work for
State bid prices, as well as a limited time frame (from a weather standpoint) wherein the road work
could be accomplished.

Mr. Gomez said: “I think we should do it.”

Mr. Marconi said the Town has had problems with independent contractors in the past. He added that
the Town started group purchasing through HVCO.

Mr. Walsh asked about the composition of “slurry”, and Mr. Hill said it is an emulsion with a
percentage of water and aggregate which is a find type of stone.

Mr. Hoff added that slurry is put down in a very thin layer which does not require the drains to be
raised or the road aprons to be adjusted. “Overall, it’s a great savings and extends the life of the road.”

Mr. Ulmer said the Board of Finance needs to discuss the distribution of road maintenance costs
between the capital and expense budgets, and hypothetically asked if it is appropriate to capitalize it all.

Mr. Hill said the cost used to be divided half capital and half expense.

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Chief Ligi started the discussion with the 4% annual contractual salary increases for this year and next.
A new contract is due to be negotiated in July, 2008. He said many line items in his budget had no
increases, and some were reduced. He noted the sharp increase in the cost of utilities.

Mr. Wahlberg said that Chief Ligi was given a budget challenge which he met by making requested
cuts. The money for replacement batteries for the difibulators and portable radios was taken out of
capital and put into operating.

Mr. Marconi stated that a new officer was hired to replace the SRO which is funded in the Town’s

budget rather than the BOE’s budget. Chief Ligi said that, having separate cost centers, might help
qualify for future grant money.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/28/2007 Page 2 of 6



Mr. Marconi said the BOE and say it no longer wants an SRO in the school. If the BOE cuts the

financing from it’s budget, the money is in place in the Town budget. Most towns in Connecticut have
fund the SRO in the Town budget.

Mr. Ulmer asked if the Town budget is approved as is, will the BOE budget be lowered by the
$50k.earmarked for the SRO?

Chief Ligi said the BOE has made it clear that it wants the SRO, it just doesn’t want to pay for it. In
response to a question from Mr. Gomez, Chief Ligi responded that the Ridgefield Police Department
has achieved all three tier levels of accreditation. That, however, does not mean the program ends as
there has to be re-visited every three years to keep the accreditation current. Mr. Gomez said his
concern was if the capital budget has what the department needs to do its job and keep its accreditation.

Mr. Ulmer noted that the unmarked car lease can not be capitalized. He asked Chief Ligi about the
headquarters improvements and the Chief said that phase one would be an addition and elevators and
phase two would be renovations for central dispatch. The third floor renovations have been scrapped
because the engineering study determined that it could not be renovated for a reasonable cost.

Mr. Cordelli noted that changes in the Town Charter provide an opportunity for the Town and the BOE
to do things together better. Citing the fact that the schools are proposing to bring in consultants for a
security audit, Mr. Cordelli asked the Chief if he knew if the State BOE or the State Police have a
program to come into the school system and make security recommendations.

Chief Ligi responded that the State Police are always an available resource. He said that he has
reviewed the four bids submitted to the BOE and will ask to attend the meeting to listen and look at the
proposals and their costs being made by the two companies he thinks are viable.

In response to a question from the BOF regarding emergency communications capability, Chief Ligi
responded that the Department has Reverse 911 that works through phone lines within the system and
can cover the Town in one hour. He said the school systems bought some emergency software several
months ago.

Mr. Walsh suggested the Town’s insurance carriers as a resource.

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Chief Burford said the emergency notification system “City Watch” now had more enhancements and
more users than before. She said her Department sent out a mailing soliciting residents’ unlisted
telephone numbers to add to the call list, and was creating a “special needs” database.

Mr. Walsh asked where the data base was maintained and Chief Burford responded: “Town Hall” Mr.
Wahlberg promptly interjected that it has been moved over to the Police Department’s servers. Mr.
Marconi said the hardware at Town Hall has been disconnected.

Mr. Wahlberg said that Chief Burford was given a budget challenge which she met by making
requested cuts.

Board of Finance Minutes 3/28/2007 Page 3 of 6



— TrTT T a

increased so they want to see how that plays out.

Mr. Burford says the Department receives 3,000 calls per year, up 18% since 2000. 68% of what the
Fire Department does is emergency medical service. Mr. Walsh asked how much of that was generated
by local nursing homes. Chief Burford said that 25% of the time in the medical calls an engine comes
out of service to put an ambulance into service. 45% of the calls require a paramedic. The parties
discussed the Town’s mutual aid agreements with neighboring towns.

Fire Marshal David Lathrop said he has three components to his job:
1. reviewing building plans
2. annual inspections of public buildings
3. fire investigation and determination of cause

The Fire Department wants to initiate a part-time position to help the Fire Marshal, the cost of which
would be offset by fees charges to review plans and make State-mandated inspections.

Mr. Ulmer noted a 33% increase in the uniforms budget and Chief Burford responded that she is in a
“repair phase” for equipment, saying the gear situation is dire. Much of it (fire gear) is outdated. Ultra
violet light breaks the gear down.

Mr. Gomez said he was impressed by the Chief’s understanding of the Fire Department and was happy
to see it did not anticipate needing a new ambulance until the end of the five-year plan. Chief Burford
said she was still analyzing the Department equipment vis a vis anticipated needs. She noted that
multi-use “hybrid” fire apparatus is now available and she is working on a fifteen-year vehicle
replacement schedule.

Mr. Walsh asked to re-visit the two requested fire medics. Mr. Wahlberg said it was done this year.
“That’s why it’s in the top line. It’s maturing.”

GOLF COURSE
Board of Finance Minutes 3/28/2007 Page 4 of 6










